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wabsites indicates, and you have confirmed, that
compraehangive -« oy let's use the exact word, fuil
gservice default services are different and separatse from

foreclosure golutiong: correclt?

A Correash.
Q Okay. Now I'm giving vou an example, which

although vou weren't there. You have 25 vears of
sxperience. When somsone like MTC does a {orbsarvance
agreemant with a defanitc borroweyr and collecte, l20'3
zay, approximabely 818,000 in connection with thab
pavable to MTC, is that a default ssrvice or is that 3
foreciosuyre?

MR. CRRAN: Tt assumes facts nob in sevidengs,

¥You ould angswer.

THE WITNESS: I would say that 4if it'g -- 1F it
was -~ it would be related to foreclosure, bulb it would
e oa separate -- 1t would be a separate ssrvioe outside
of foreclosure, so it would be undery default,

BY ME. BOYLAN:

». Okay. 8o forbearance agreemente fall under

dafault services -~ default, veah, default services.

A Correct.
. A1l rvight. Lisn clearance, do yvou Rnow

what bthat meang?
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& In vour wview, does that fa2ll under default
services or foreclosure golution?

A It could be both, dependent on if the
acoount 18 in foreclogsure, then it would fall underx
foreclosure, If it wasn'it in foreclosure, then it would
fall under defaulit. In other words, if we didn'i have
the casse in foreclosure.

0} Default actions ave different from

non-judicial foreclosurses; corvreaci?

A T oguess it's a matter of interpretation.
03 Well, let's look at the webhsite. Page &,

Again, it's ligting Trustee {0rps SeIvices.
You ses that non-dudicial foreglosures 1g a

distinct line irem fyrom default actions: correct’?

& Corveaect,

»; And that'as distinet from deeds in lieu;
Cornrect?

A Coryrect.

3 Now deeds in liew is a form of loss

mitigation; oorrect?

A Tt oguld be, veas.

o3 And that invelves essentially taking the
property on behalf of the lender and satisiaction of the

defaulted debht:; correch?

iy Basically a voluntary reposgession of the

L L T i
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property, correch.

back 4o the lender.

And ¥MTC handled that? That's one of its

K

A F

We coulag, o

o

S8 .

&}

And did when vou arrived in 20117

ik R LT

Yam.

— -i—-—
0
Ll R

And © applied in Nevada, o2f courge, as

We il

A

A inn all states, rignt.

And vou don't congider that gollieglion;

L

COrTect?

A Correct.

v a s P

¥ Okay. BSo let's -- looking at pags &,

talk about thege distinet line items of gervices there.

Ong reference save, "Default actions performed by MTC.®

What were Lhose in 2011 when yvou arvvrived?

A

A I don't know. To ke honest with vou, I

dontt even know what would fall under default actions

Nnow, B0 can't answer that.

n
e

What deoes ¥Ppost-sale conveyvances? mean?

&

L P

A Post-gale convevance ralates to FHA ang VA

iogans, whien they are conveayved back to the government.

When title i conveyved back to the government.

» And that applied to Nevada as well?

i A i o o o
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A A11 states.
9, What exactly -- what gervigss in that

regard 4id MTC provide when vou avvived in 20117
A I'm pretiy sure MTU was doing post-zals

conveyvances back in 2011 as well.

9. Could vou tell me exactly what that means.
P2y Ckay. 8o if we go to foreclosure sale, 1t

reverses pack to ARC mertgage. IL --

. By a coredit bhidy

A Moy, It dg just reversed. Nobody bids on
it. It goes to sale, so it goss back to the mortgage
COMPATY .

If 1v's owned by FHA or VA, vyvou have a
certain time peviod of which yvou have Lo convey titlse Lo
Chose entities. 3¢ it hag to be pub in Lhe name of VA,
It haz to be pubt in the name of FHA. And title has to
e olear in ovdey to do that. 5o vow have a veyry short
time of which toe do that.

So thoge files arve worked. Bveryvthing is
cleared. Title ig then conveved with the new title
policy, and the property ig then desded Lo the FHA or
VA&,

@ And as shown by the demarcation on page §,
that is a separate service that MPC performed different

from the non-sjudicial foreclosure.

e A e T T T T T T T T

-y

B ok ok e i i e i e o

e e i A A A S i i S o o S

A A A A A S A A A ol ol o
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1 | A Correct.,

i~

& And whalt iz "senioyry lien monitoring®?

A

3 A Tf there is a second deed of trust and

4 there 18 a fiyst desad of ftrmash of recgeoyd, they are

5 | momitoring the first deed of trust to ensure that the

e e i i i A A S o i S i i o o o o S o

5 | second dosen’t geb wiped cut by the first.

7 9 argd that service i again distinct from

g non-Jjudicial forscliosure?

A Corract.

A A

LRV 3 MTC was doing that in 2011 as well when vou

il | arrived?
2 A I baelieve theyv wars,

134 3 Closings isg indicsated as a separates and
14 | distinet service from non-iudicial forecliosures. What
15 does "clozingst meant

16 A We have an esgcrow division. QOury main

17 2ECYoW wag & part of it as wall, 50 we have an esorow

division, the egeorvow closings., Cleosings and REC pretiy

A A o o

1% 1 much £all under the same category. It's an esorow

division.

)
L

21 3 REC is different in terms of i1ts listing on
22 | page 6. I think I know a little bit more of what YREQF
23 | means,

24 A Well, closings could be refinances, bthat

i tvpe of thing., RED's arve obviously propertiess thatb

4
4
4
4
4
h
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e S

PiY Lorreact
3 Page 25 of Exhibic &. Is it a trus
statement with reapect to Trustse Corporation whalt's

gtated there, which is, "Regulatory compliance is the
foundation upon which Trustee Corps conducts buginesgh?
A Yes,
MR . CERAN: Move Lo gtrike. Objecticon. Callis
for incomplete LesLinony.
You oould angwey,

BY THE WITHNEZS:

{3 &nd that's besn tyrue singe you aryived
Lhaera?

Ja Yeg. In my opinion, abscolutslv.

O That includes the laws ¢f the State of

Navada; Ccorrech?

FAY Jorract.
8 I want to touch briefly on seomebthing bthat

we skimmed earlisy, and that is vour marketing callg.

¥You indicated thabt vou make marketing with others to

existing and/or potential clients. I vou remember that

testimony?
Py Y5,
9, 8o 18 it btrue thatb - - and T dont't mean this

X

in a pajorative way, but that MTC selicits lenders to

bring the company business with respset to the ssyvices

7.8, LEGAL SUBPORT
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-~y

1L provides as to defaulted lcans?

I o

P Yeg,

[
A A A A S A A S o A

K 9, and that's true for Nevada as wall?

9, Has that always been Crue since you arvived

A A o o o o

& ¢ there in 20117

Ly Yere,

e

8 o Angd the work that it selicits from new

2 | clients and/or retaining existing coliente includes the

10 different types of serviceg you have described hers

= i i

1101 teday, including reinstatement, pavoff, default actions,
12 | REGQ, deeds in lisu, post-gale conveyance; correct?

13 A ot all of those because some of those are

14 | done by Harmony Escrow, as I stated, bub.....

i% 4 Othierwige, Youy answer is yag?

A

A You.

a3
o

0 In the obhisctive -- as a general rale, the

i
3

e e e i A i A A A A S S o S S S S oS

18 | wbjective with respect to those services is to obtain

19 pavment on Che lean that iz in default on bhehalf of your

20 ciient lenders and/or forecliose on the property and

A

21 ¢ deliver Lhe properiy or the sales proceeds to the

=2 | lender?

23 | MR. CERAN: T'wm sorry. I'm going te have to heay
24 that back, Ms. Reperter. It was Sust too long.

25 i

A ol o

........................................................................................................................................................................
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O Forgive me, and I don't mean to argus with

P A

veir, but I think you have testified that you provide

ey

4 | rainstatement gquotesg, vou collect the checks, provids

A T S o S

5 1 paveif guotes, vou coollect the checks, vou depogii the

& | checks in the tyvust account, if they are made oubt Lo

N
i

you, then you send them Lo the banks oy yvou ¢golliegt the

i

checks for reinstatenent and/or pavoif. If they are

[P,

g ¢ made oubl to bthe bank, vou bring themwm in, vou pass them
10 on to the bank. The corvespondencs has shown you have
11 | phone calls and faxes and e-maills regarding

12 reinstatement andg pavoeif.

But whalb yvou're telling me is MTO dossn't

u .

FPuma

"
A i A

14 | have any involvsment, and -- 13 that your testimony?

15 ME. CERaN: Obiection. Argumentablive.
16 | You oould answver.

17 THE WITHNESS: No, I'm not saving that. You ashad

ig me 1% the obisctive was for us Lo get a reinstatemant

and pavoff. Ultimately, the obijsctive is for all

»

L.

:

Vi
e rrpe

20 | parties for the borrowey to vetain their home and

e e o L i i o i P s i P i S o o S o s o o o o S o o

21 1 reinstate and pay off the home.

-
[

22 Trustes Corps has no responsibility or

i

fed
Lad

we tyre not involved in that progess other than progssgsing

B
#n

the payments that may come in for reinstatement and

£
(3!

L LSS Y EFEF IR

payerf.

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Cathe Cole-S8herpurn
Novembeyr (01, 24018

BY Mk, BOYLAN:

) Progegsing the gollaction: rvigho?
A Mot geollection -- well, processing the

payment that comes in from the borvowsr on a
reingtatenent and pavoiff and sending it to the lenderv,
COTYregt.

O And that's net collecting, or it is?

MR. CERAN: Obijection., Argumentalblive agalin.

You ocould answeary.

THE WITNESS: I don't think itl's ~-~ I don't view
1t as gollecting, no, I disagres with vou on that.
BY MR. BOVIAN:

o3 S0 when yvou recgeive a fundgd on the loan,
that is not collecting.

i Mo, itfas not collections in the terms of
what vou'lre implving, at least what my interpretation of
what you're implying.

Colleciing on the loan ig -- w2 are
the,. ... What do I want to say?

o Agent?

MR, CERAN: I'm sorvy. Jounsel, she ig trving a
arford vou a courtesy of like waiting Tor you to finish
vour guestion, and I would like vou to allow her Lo
finish her answer before you start ocubtting her off and

breaking up her answey; okav? Iz that okay, Coungel?

.85, LEGAL SURPPLORT
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Cathe Cole-Sherburn
Novenber 01, 201§

You think we ocguld do that?

MR, BOYLAN: We will go guestlion by question,
My, Cevan,.

MR. CERAN: Would vou stop interyvupbting her,

MR, BOYLAKN: T thank vou interrupted her more
than I did.

ME., CERAN: No. I think yvou did, Counsel.

BY ME. BOYLAN:

o Al right. Your answey, ma'am. Are vou
aone’?
Fiy No., Well, the answer I had was we arg --

Che trustes thalt then passes the monies Lo Lhe DOorrowsr.
Not necesgarily collecting in the genge of -- 30 we are
passing -~ the monsy comses o us, and then we pags 1t on
to bthe lendsy. That's all we're doing.

Q And yvou thought wmy guestion iwmplisd some --
something elae?

A Yez, absolutaly.

® Whnat gid my -- I didn’it know you were
angwering based on the implication rather than the words

I used.
A That's what I was Just talking --

raferencing.

9, What did I diwmply that vou werse answering?
A Tt's the way you'rve veferencing --

U058, LEGAL SUPPORT
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ME, CERAN: Hold on. Held on,

THE WITNEZS: Okav,

A A A

ME, CERAN: You don't have to answer that

-

P

guastion. He 1ig arguing with vou now., Ask & ~-

e i i i A o i S o S

ME. BOVLAN: No. T think it bears on all her

testimony on this subdect.

MR, CERAN: No. I disagree. You're baiting the

I

wibtnegs., You want to avrgus with her. Just ask her

gquestions that have to do with the case, nobt hey
interpratation of vour implication of the guestion.

That's beside the point. It's not propsr. Quit arguing

with the witness like thieg.

A

ME. BOYLAN: All right. That entire gpeaking

coiecticon is improper in Wevads. What you say is

argumentative, and that'‘s it. S0 vou can be sanctionsd
for that. It'g exactly what Rick Reyvnolds did.  You

Inow her commants about Mr. Revnolds' behavior. FPlease

gont't do it again.

Q 8¢ in that sevies of guestions you thought

A

I was implving some btype of legal viclation? Ls that

e A i i A A i A i S A A A A S o ol .

why yvou answered the way vyvou did if I used the word

MR. CERAN: Obijection. Argumentabtive.

THE WITNESS: T don't know if foollection® ig the

L A o

proper word is all D'm saving personally. You know, am

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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|
s
L I collecting the woney from the borrowery and passing it

to bthe servicer? Are vou handing it bto m2 and then I'm

guestion.

BY MR. BOYLAN:

o Leb me bhe olear for the racord.

{13

3 Dkay.

i

Ifm not making any little conclusicon about viclation of

law., If'm dust using novmal English words in the normal

custom of the English langusge. aAnd I would like you o

implication, plsase, of a legal viclation,

When MTU ccllects monsy from ths borrowey

A

with rvespech to a defauited loan and then passes Lhat

money on bto its lendeyr client, whether it's fox

Lacstion action?

et
o

a OO

MR, CERAN: Obdection. Calls foy opinion

testimony. Calls for legal conclusion.

Yo could angswer,

A

THE WITNESS: T dont't bhelieve ib's collection

aghivity. I believe it'g part of the dutliesg ¢f the
trustas.
BY MK, BOYLAN:

2 A1l right. What -~ what duiy are you

L A o

B T L T T T T N L

U.5. LEGAL SUPPORT
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nanding it off to them? Yes. The answer 18 yes to thab

answey bassed on that rathey than what parceived Lo be an

rainstatemnsent oy payoff, do vou believe that that 13 noe

refarring to? And the resason why I ask ils you read that
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Sathe Cole-Bherburn
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R

Hos decision. I know vou'lre educated aboul compliancs
andg the law,

MR, CERAN: Leif's just have a gusstion and
answer., We don't neesed vour -~ your asatatements.

BY MR. BOYLAN:

o Iz there a gtatute that vou helisve
reguires the brugtes o receive that money from the
borrowey and pass that money on to vour lender client?

MR. CERAN: Seeks a legal conclusion.

Yol could answer,

THE WITNESS: I don't know if there is a specific

atatute that states that., No, T don't bhelieve that
rthere is. I don't inow.

BY MK. BOYLAN:

(e Why then 4did vou -- D'm just curicus. Wiy

Adid vou zay itts the duty of a trustee Lo gollect that
monay fromn the borvrower, for example, reinstatemant O
mayoff and pass 1t on toe the lender?

ME. CERAN: Argumentatives.

THE WiTNESS; Tt s because we are the middie
peraon. We are the frustee. We are g2rving as the
middle person between the borvower and the servicer,
if the borrower tanders funds to ug on behalf of Lhs
gearvicer, then we just pass the funds over to the

servicing, that's correct, that is what we do.

U.5. LEGAL SUPPCRY
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November 01, 2016

STATE OF CALIPORNIA }

|
COUNTY OF ORANG }

I i

I, Prenda Pauley, a Certified Shorthand

Raporter, do hersby ocertify:
E That prior o being examined, the witness in
the foregoing proceedings was by me duly sworn Lo

testify te the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

the trubh:;

That said procesdings were taken pefore me at

A A S S

the time and place therein set forth and were taken gown

by me in shorthand and thereafter trangcribed into

tvpewriting under wmy divection and supervision;

I further gevbify that I am neithery counsel
for, nor related to, any party to saild procesdings, now
in any way interested in the oultoome Lhereot,

In witnees whereof, T have heveunto subscribed

MY DA,

L

Dated: Novembey 11, 20148

| e
A P& £ .
LS ¥ S At v s s 4
A FF SNSES IR T §
b 23 {Ao\-} {‘&\-}&: & 3 ‘”—.{KQ 3 #if‘\ m‘i?
§ O W TSR o § LA A i
‘ \}**"%
S
&
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ i:..:‘_?.“_““““
- e
Brenda Pauley W
CER No. £335
s
X
s
|
;
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(714}488-0737
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Maria Diarz

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

; DEISTRICT COURT

A o o o o o o

| CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

- JEFPREY BENKD, A NEVADA E
REATIDENT, E

§ Plaintiffs,

} 2= Tanae No.

| B-11-648K57-C |
§ QUALITY LOAN SERVICE §
: CORPORATION, A& CALIPORNIA REPT. 2% E
CORPORATION,
: Defendants,
: DEPOSITION QF MARIA DIAZ :
Septembey 27, 201¢

§ 117 p.om. |
: 200 Roosgevell
E Trvine, California 92820
E
i:
|
|
L REPORTED BY:

Mikavia M. Speagle §
|
¢ CER No. 13807 ;

7.8. LEGAL SUPPORT
(714} 48&-0737
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Maria Dias
September 27, 2016

Py Yeg,
O} Which name is move familiar to yvou so I wi
try B0 use that duving the deposition? Is MTC good
Trustee Corps?

& rustes Jorps.

, Trustes Corvps. Very goeod. Whalt were bhe
of vour emplovment with Trustes Jorps?t

A T owag 20311 fto 2000~ ~- I beligve it was |

2 Where ware vou amploved with Trustee Corps
vou recall the addrese?

& NG .

0 Do oyvow recall bLhe oity?

i Trvine,

{d Was that the only gffice for Trustee CoYps
whers vou worksd, or did you sometimes move Lo diff

ofEfices or work in different ffices?

A No. That was bthe only ons.

o e e e e T T e T T e e T T e e T T e o T e T B T T e T T T T T o e e e e e e % m W R B B R

11

o1

13,

Y I3

2rent

- Do ovou recall what street it was on in Irvins?

A N

03 Do oyou recall, 1if I mavy ask, Mg, Dias, when in

Z0L3 yvou laftc the employes of Trustes Corps?

iy I can't remenmbey,

3 Do vou recall whethery it was in summertime o

wintertime or roughly what seagon of ths year?

A NG.

LW T T T T T e T T e T e T T T T e T T T T T T T T T T T T e T T T T T e T T T T T e T T e T T e e e e e e e e e e e o e e e e FwE A E R TR R R T R T T Y
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Maria Diarz
September 27, 2016
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A

i o o

o
debbors?

A

4,

mailingas?

g

A

W

that call

A

(G

Oxd vou word there about two years?y
Yes.

Who were vou sending the mailings tobf
I dor't remenmber.

Do yvou remenmber 1f 1t was othey companises o

1 don't remembeyr.

Do ovou recall whabt states you were sending the

N,

How long did yvou do mailings?

T don't rememdar.

When I spoke to vou by phooe, do you ramembar
7

Yag.,

You said vou were doing reinstatements. Do you

raecall that?

J

Yea.
Can vou describe when vou took that positiont
Tt was right after mailings.

How long 4did vou hold the position wherse yow

waere involved in doing reinstatements?

A

RPaeinstatements T did for about ~- for

approximately three months.

L

P
v

That inciuded Tor Nsvads; coryecht?

R e e e e R R R R e i e e e e e b e e R TR T TR AR AR R R
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A I can't remsnber.
3 Ten't that what vou told me on the phons,

Chought

0
b
t

A I mean, I can't remembay exactly what states

{3 But didn't vou tell me on the phone 1L wWas
Nevada?

ME. CERAN: Obijection. Assumes [acts not in
avidence. You Can answay,

THE WITHESE: I know like this was a while
back., Un, I can't remembeyr 1¥ it was for Nevada.
BY ME, BOYLAN:

Q I'm nob asking vou that now.  I7m asking you
about what voeu told me on the phone. You did tell mae on
the phone it included Nevadsa; correct?

FAN Yas.,

» Has scomething happened singe then Lo soavre you?y
T'm saving this respectiully. You zeem extremely soarved

and nervous uniikes when 1 ftalksd Lo yvou on the phone,

o
fmaad
Y
)

anyihing happened gince peitween now and when we
spoke on the phone that hag affected vou Or your meamory?
A Ny,

Are vou scared?

Y

2 I'm nervous.

(2 Glkayv., Is it affecting vour mamory?

1.5, LEGAL SUPPFORT
(Fi4) 486~0737
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Maria Diaz
Septewbeyr 27, 2016
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{3 Where did vyvou sit when vou were doing
reinstatementae for Trustee Corps for approximataly thres
ronithis?  Did vou have a desgk? Did vou have a bhooth?
Did vou have an office? Where did vou s1i87

I I had an office, but the exact sulite, I don'th
rememixar.

Q Wha gat near vou?

Piy I can't remenmber Cheir names.

2 Do vou rememoer aven one person’s name’y

A I remembeyr wmy superviacsr'’'s name.

Who iz bthat?

£

A Natalis Resendiz.

¥ She was a supervisor with respach Lo youy
rainstatement wWork?

A Yaag.,

9 What is reinstatement work, according Lo youy
understanding, from your dob there ar Trustes Corps?

i It's just monsy that iz -- it is just
nomsowners that haven't paild their paymeants. The
reinstatement would have the amount that 1s owaed or that
they are behind on. Actually, that they are hehind on.

& When vou worked in reinstatements for about
three monthg, that’s what vou 4did all day long, is work

or reilnstatementa?

oy
ey

Yag,

e B R LR R
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Maria aiasz
Septanbay 2 2014
G Who else did thait with vou?
A I can't remembey the individual's nams.
0 Let's talk about what they ilook like, how old
they are, what oclory theiyr hair was. Can you describe

acme ¢f these othery reinstatement professionals?

A 't wags a male. He had black haiyr, around his
208 .

0, Do yvou recgall 1if he had Hispanic name?
Anvihing else about him?

Jay No. He locoked Hispandio.

& Wag he also deoing reinstatements all day that
vou sbhasrved?

A ves,

Q Weyres vou oy he limifted to any parvtioular

states, or did vou do rainstatements for all of the

states that Trustee Corporation seyviced?

A I can’t remember.
{4 Matam, were Lheres any states vou could nob work

<A

on reinstatemenis ont

A NO,

3 Gkay. S0 what states were inciudsd in the
Trugstee CQIrps wWOrk?

A The only one I remember would be California.
California is the only state that I remembeyr that we

worked on. I don'i ramember any obher atates,

T P

e A i i i A S S A o S S
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Maria Diaz
Saptember 27, Z018

A I don't remember one way or the obher.
4§ S¢ let's talk about all the things vou did
during the course ¢f a day when you wWere wWorking on

reinstatements. Fivst of all, what vwou are talking

about is reinstating a loan that 1s in default; corrvect?

Pacople haven't made thelr payments, like vou gaid
sarlier?

A What wag Lhalty

; Read thabt back pleaase.

(Whereupon the court reporviter read back}.

THE COURT REPORTER: "Zo let's talk about all
the things yvou did during the course of a day when vou
were wOrking on reingtatemsesnts. First of all, what vou
are talking abouit ig reinstating a lcan that ig in
default; correct? People haven't made their payments,
iike yvou saild earlisy?®

THE WITNESS: Yes.,

BY MR. BOYLAN:

&3 S50 oyvou would communicate with them aboub how
they nesded (o rveinstate the loan; correct?

& NG .

9, ¥You recall telling me vou wsre 4doing work on

o T T b T T e T T e e T e e e e T T e e T e e T e e e T e e T T T e e T B e e B B e e A e e e e e e e e e e e e

L R A R R R R AR R R R R R T R R L L L

the telephone, when yvou and I gpcoks, when vou were doing

reinshatemantg’®

5 Inbounag calls.,

A e a i i e e e e R A R R R AN AR R R R R R RN E R WA R L LR R R R

e o e e e e e T A
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{3 Approximately how many inbound calls regaryrding
reinstatement would you take in your average day?

A Around Lthres.

3 And ¥you were working an eighb-hour day’y

A Yesas.,

3 How long wase the average call?

A I can't remempbery how Long.

% Less than five minutes Ltyvpicalivy?

A I gcan't vemembey.

O What ig vour best estimate?

A About five minutes.

0 S0 that iz, vou said, three inbound calls.
That's about 15 minutes a day; rignt?

iy Yea.

» ig that vour sworn testimony?

A Yes .,

0 What were vou doing the obher geven hours
45 mirsites a dav?

A The reinzstatemanis.

G Bractly. What wsre yvou doing sexactly, as bhast
you can tell me., What were you deing with vour hands,
VOULT 2Ears, YOUY eves, vour mouth? What wers you
physically doing please?

A I wag getbing guctes from the gystem that

provided us with the rveingtatement amounts and crsating

7.8, LEGAL SUPFORT
{714 48A-0737
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Maria Diaz
Septempaer 27, 201§

oy e - e e e e i e T T

Cthe reingtatement documents.
& When vou handled phone calls, which yvou say
woere inbound calls, tChat is what vou were talking o ths

debtors about? The reinstatement amounta?

Y Yes.,

), You would provide thab bto them go they could
reinstate their loan?

A If we had them, ves.

) The purpose was bthey would know Lhs amounkt Lo
then reinstate the loan; correqt?

A &g,

0 That would be collacted Iy MTU?

& Yes,

0 You had an accounting funcbion, Lo, 82 You
wera involved with ceollscting the monevs from the
debtora; oorrech?

A yes.,

9. What did vou do with regpect ©o the acoounting
and coellection functions?

A I would just receive the checksg and put them in

a deposit slip, and that was it,

o And how many hours a day did vou tvpigally
apend doing that?

B, Can vou repeat the guestion?

(Whersupon the couri reporter read back) .

. LRGAT, SUPRORT
{7314) 48&-0737

.-
g5

e e R R e R R e e e e e e e e e R L e e e L e A R R R R R e e T TR R N N R Rk KR

i A S o o

I A A i o o o o

A A i A A A P A A S o o S

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

AA00269<



o

L

o3

14

1o

16

17

18

24

i
*
-

2
Lo}

ah

AT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T o e e e e e e e o e e e e

i i o o

A o

A A o o S A

prar

Maria Diaz
Seprtembeyr 27, Z0L&

THE COURT REPORTHER: “And how many hours a day
did vou typically spend doing thag?®
THE WITNESZ: It depends on how busv,

BY MR. BOYLAN:

Q Give me s0ome egtimates.  Your busiest day, your

ileast busy day?

&

B It would e the exght hours on bu
at least it would ke arcound five hours.

¥, That ig collecting checks, doing the deposit
ailips?

A Yes.

- S¢ you saw a lot of big checks or a lot of
little checks ovr all «f the above?

A I don't remember.

(o Okay. I'm not asking bto be exacth, bual most

paople when they sse money, sse checks, it kind of

2

sticks in their brain. Did the amount stick in yvour
brain at ally

A NoO.

¥ What was the your best sstimaibe? What ig vyour
best estimate on the eight hour days when you were
racgeiving checks and doing deposit sliips for
approximately eight hours? What i1s vour best kallpark,
aztimate of how much money was collected in such a day?

MR. CERAN: Chisction. No foundation.

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

U.5. LEGAL [UPRCRT
(714 488-0737
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Maria Diaz
Septembeyr 27, 2018

BOYLAN ¢

fusth an estimate, ma'am?
I dont't remamber.

-

All rvight. Let me sees 1f I can help vou. Was

L.t mors or less than 510, 0007

3

oiecbion.

3

MR, CBERAN: SEme

1

THE WITNESS I can't remember.

ME., BOYLAN: Was it more or lesg than 1900

million dollars?

BY MR.

T

",

MR. CERAN: Same abjecgtion.

THE WITNREESS: I can'ts ramembey.

BOYLAN:

Can you remenier the amounts of any checka?
NG,

What was vyour begt estimabte of the number of

checks that would consume an eight-hour day of receiving

them and putting in the deposit slips? An eight-hour

Javs,

abhout

L

that scounds like a 1ot of checks. Am I wrong

that?

N,
Pardon me, ma’'am? Can vou gpseak up?
N,

Itt's at least a couple hundred checks Lo take

you eight hours; corrsch?

A

Yes,

U.8. LESAL SUPPORT
(714} 486-0737
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g Sometimag as many as 500 checks in a day?
A Togan'tt remembaey
3 Well, labt's do {he math togethey then. How

much time did it take vou to cellect s check and make

]
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Okay. 8o 30 ssconds pey check., Sometimes 14's

>

consumad an sighbt-houy day; ourrect?

"'-l

Ay Ve,
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* All
can help yvou with vour testimeony. Did you take a lunch
break and other breakg?

iy Yey

{3 So vour achual working time was aboulb savern

o< L

LY

hours when you were handling the chechs; correct?
Ay Ye&s,
{2 Tach hour has €0 minubes. S0 saven hours,
ig 420 mimutes; yight? You said 1t takes about 30
seconds each.  If we take that bimes two, thal is

»

acomewhsre in the nsighborhood of approximately 84U

shecks that vou collected each day and wrote the deposit

Does that aound like a failry egstimabe?

he Did vou keep a recoord of any kind, or 4id
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Maria Diaz
Septembey 27, 2016
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anyone alse kKeep a rveocord of how many checks vou

[
e i i i o ol ol ol ol ol o o o el

prepared or deposit?y
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A I don't remember.
Q You weren't depositing into some stranger'sg

check, were your
AN NG.
0 Like someons's uncle or something?
B, N,
{3 Jkay. S0 where were you depositing all these

240 checks? What did the deposit glip say on ib, ma'am?
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I would give them over Lo my sSupervisor.

What was your understanding of what would be

done with the money after it was deposited?
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I never asied.
But vou had a gensral understanding that Lhe

Going to e passed onbtoe the lender to who the

WAK Owed: oorrect?

T can't remambar.

Wnat do yvou think? What did vou think was

o happen Lo the moneyy

T dont't kKnow. I never asked.

Ckay. Well, let's go slow then. You indicated

ware people that had not made payvmenis; Qorrecht

Yes.
nat is on a loan they had; right?
Yaas.

¢ whan you regaived Chisg money, it was Lo

reinstate that loan; correct?

guestion.
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Yes,

Su the money was Lo go Lo the loan; correch?
Yes,

And the ioan was from a bank; right?

MR. CERAN: Sorry. I didn't hear thait last

Could vou please restate ib7
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BOYLAN:
The loan was from a bank; right?
Yes.

And vou understood the Trustee Corps worked for

the bank; rignt?
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S0 vou had a basic undeystanding Lhast you were
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Qkay. Ma'am, take a Llook please what has bheen

markaed Exhibkit Number 1. You can flip through it 1f vou

T'm going to go through in., I will give you

different pages. We will talk sboul tham,

The pages arve numbered in black in the lower

right-hand corner, pages 1 througlt 22, At any Time in
vour life, have yvou ever looked at Trustes Corps

waehgite?

{Plaintiff BExhibit 1 was marked fov
idaentification! .

NG .

Do vou recogrnize thig as a website doocument?
NO.

Do ovou know what logs mitigation is?
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g 0 Did you sometimes return phons calls from
| people thatbt had called you? ;
§ A NG, ;

3 Why is that? §
E A I would usually 3ust give them Lo the é
: SUPSYvisoy.

% {3 Natalie would refurn the calle?

é MR, CERAN: Objection. No foundation, §
: THE WITNEESE: 1 don't know.

| BY ME. BOYLAN: §
: 0} How far did Natalie sit £rom vou, maiam? E
E A Mot £ar.

3 B0 you saw her on the phone, didn's you? |
§ B AL btimes, ves. %
g (3 And you would give her phone numbars o return
% calls of debtors that were calling regarding §

reinstateament; correct? E
§ A yes .,
! 9 And why was theare a policy she had to return |
% the calis to the debtors rather than you? FBecause she ;

WAS a4 SUpervisor? ;
A NG .
5 . Then why 4did yvou give hey the numbers to refturn E
é tlie phone calls to the debtors? |
| |
! & v was gomething I would do. I would Sust givs ;
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them to her.

I know., I'm asking why. Was there a3 policy,

Ny
Why didn't you do it yourself then, ma’am?

T don't know.

You made this up yvourself, this practice? I'm

tust dnguiring., It seemeg odd, so I need Lo inguire.

MR. CERAN: Obijection. Avgumentive. You can

THE WITNESE: It is just something I would do.

Iowould just give them o her,

2Y MR. BOYLAN:

Were vou afraid Lo reftuyn callg?

Nc}t

Is there any veason why Natalie had to return

the debtor calls rather than vou?

NG

Wag there any specific circumgtance whare

Mataize would have to return the calls such as the

debtor was denying it or there was a conflict or a

Is that when it would escalate to the

SUPRYVISOr?

I don’t remembeyr. I mean, T would Just give

Cher Lo her, I don't remember sxactly why.
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THE COURT RECORDER: Just a few seconds.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Just let me know when
you're back up.
THE COURT RECORDER: We're on.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Oh, we're on, okay.
Wonderful. Thank you.
Okay. So getting back to our issues, several of the
defendants have produced contracts with their lenders. That's
what 'm expecting will happen here in terms of redaction. |
understand there may be a distinction between prices for
certain services that you would pay or you would be paid or
your client would be paid versus I'm thinking of, you know, the
terms and conditions of the contract between you and your
lenders, which | dont really think is relevant except for —-
and I'm making a distinction here -- but | wouldn't suspect
that - | don't know if that would be in a contract. You know,
well pay you X amount of moneytodo Y.
MR. BOYLAN: Itoftenis, and they break down --
MR. CERAN: Well -
MR. BOYLAN: - because they do a lot of different
things -
MR. CERAN: - here's the irony.
MR. BOYLAN: --there's posting the notice. There's
the sale that, you know, they have it -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And they put the money

JD Reporting, Inc.
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that they're going to pay them in the contract?
MR. CERAN: With all due respect to counsel, he's
reciting all the terms of these contracts which he claims that
he's never seen. So I don't know how he could be so well
informed and represent to the Court, you know, what's in these
contracts, but what I'm trying to learn from the Court is what
type of information is the Court basically agreeing, you know,
should be redacted.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | want to know - well,
and it may not need to be. You have a protective order. |
just dont know. You have a better feel than | do when you
look at your contracts what's proprietary and what isn't. If
there is something that you are concerned about, then redact
it. If you feel it's necessary, then just prepare a privilege
log. 'm not really sure without having seen one of these
contracts if | can articulate it better than that.
Yes, sir.
MR. BOYLAN: My recollection is - and counsel can
correct me - CRC produced its contract with J.P. Morgan Chase
with no redactions is my recollection.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.
MR. BOYLAN: There's nothing in there that warrants a
redaction.
MR. CERAN: And CRC is no longer in business, and it

had one client and is not currently in the marketplace. My

JD Reporting, Inc.
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client is competing in the marketplace, has many, many clients.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Soin that case if in

those contracts it specifically spells out, you know, a range
of fee for services or some proprietary information that if you
are concemed about gets out in the public eye you have a
problem, then, you know, we've got one of two ways to go about
this. There is a protective order in place, which I'm assuming
would cover that, but | don't necessarily need to know, and |
dont know if the plaintiff needs to know all of the mechanics
of your relationship with your lenders, but having not looked
at the contracts, | can't tell you.

If there is a concem or problem that you have, then
have a discussion with plaintiffs’ counsel, and we'll address
it when you come back to see me on February 10th, but | would
very much like you to at a minimum produce the information
related to your practices in Nevada, whether that information
be contained in your contracts, or in your press releases or in
your memorandums intemally or otherwise, you know, your
solicitation letters for business. | just don't know -

MR. BOYLAN: And here's -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: - | mean, this is your

area.

MR. CERAN: We're a much smaller outfit than I think

you're envisioning but okay, | understand.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, if you cashed 800

JD Reporting, Inc.
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checks a day, that's not a small outfit in my mind.

MR. CERAN: | don't have time to rebut Mr. Boylan's
factual statements -

MR. BOYLAN: Il submitit.

MR. CERAN: --which are not supported by any
evidence in the record -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.

MR. BOYLAN: Actually, no, we -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.

MR. CERAN: He's been going on and on -

MR. BOYLAN: Actually, we did submit that testimony.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Allright.

MR. CERAN: --excuse me.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay. Wait. | can only
listen to you one at a time -

MR. CERAN: Yeah, just—

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: -- and | know it's been
averylong day. So let's just - | don't want to divert you
into a discussion we don't need to have right now.

Look for your contracts and make sure that you can
provide the information that basically describes what your
activities were in Nevada.

MR. BOYLAN: And -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Yes, sir.

MR. BOYLAN: And, Your Honor, | just want to notate

JD Reporting, Inc.
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that those critical depositions of the most important people
are going to be coming up, and one of the reasons they were
delayed before is because they didn't give us these documents.
So if he doesnt give us these documents and he doesnt fully
comply with your orders both today and previously prior to
those depositions which were also ordered, then very likely
those depositions will have to occur a second or third time.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, | think that you
need to take those depositions, get them scheduled, and if it
tuns out that there's information that you were advised of
that it was not produced to you, | will deal with it.
MR. BOYLAN: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: So | am going to give
counsel till February 1st to supplement. So if | were you,
when you are scheduling your depositions, | would look after
that date and get them on calendar so you're ready to go, and
theoretically you should have the information you need. That's
my hope.
MR. BOYLAN: As to the remaining items, Your Honor -
| think -- and Mr. Ceran can correct me -- but | think we just
want to follow the same orders that you've issued on the other
defendants with respect to formal and informal complaints.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: We've produced the
telephone numbers. Let's just go through these quickly.

Interrogatory 18, which we've discussed -

JD Reporting, Inc.
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MR. CERAN: | dont think that was in - | don't
think we had it.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Thatis not one of your
Issues, okay. So Request to Produce No. 2, we've talked about
that.

MR. CERAN: And we've produced everything that we
have, Your Honor.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.

MR. BOYLAN: Well, we didnt talk about 2 actually,
Your Honor. We did not.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: We havent, okay. Sois
there a problem with respect to this idea of this generic
documentation or standard forms?

MR. CERAN: Imsorry. 2is -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Thisis 2: All
documents and ESI reflecting any telephone script, telephone
contact guide -

MR. CERAN: We produced them.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: -- protocol, policy, et
cetera.

MR. CERAN: We produced -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: You have produced them.
Do we have any issue left with Request to Produce No. 2 that we
are aware of at this time, Plaintiffs' Counsel?

MR. BOYLAN: Give me one moment if | may. Thank you.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | have one question
here: Do the policies and procedures supplied pertain to the
years 2007 to the present? No, because you're only going to go
through 2012. But do those -
MR. CERAN: No, we -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: - apply?
MR. CERAN: What we actually produced, Your Honor, is
we produced our current policies.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.
MR. CERAN: And we produced to the extent we had any
prior policies on which they were based we produced those as
well, and to the best of my knowledge we have now produced
whatever policies in writing that we had with respect to
telephone procedures and talking to customers.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.
MR. CERAN: And, in fact, some of the policies that
were mentioned by counsel in his argument this moming are
actually current policies. There were no previous policies,
but we thought that since it would be a fair question to ask,
like, did you have any oral policy that's the same as your
written policy, but we've produced our current policies on
that.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: So that they would at
least understand what the policies were associated with your

company?
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MR. CERAN: Right.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.

MR. BOYLAN: The caveat that we have on that - and |
dont think we can do much about it today, Your Honor, based on
his representations, but the problem that we have is the sworn
testimony that at least according to our perception that we're
getting from the withesses are different from what Mr. Ceran is
teling us, and, for example -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Why don't you finish all
of the depositions, and then we can talk further about it
because you do have some depositions you have to take. So
let's see where we're at, and if there is a discrepancy, then
have your 2.34 before you come back and see me February 10th.

No. 3, the Request to Produce No. 3 is again this
internal documentation to show whether or not you had any
discussions. Do you need to be licensed? Did you get a legal
opinion on that? If you're going to rely on that legal
opinion, then it needs to be produced.

MR. CERAN: Nope, Your Honor. We produced everything
we have. There were no intemal memos. The decision was made
at the very top, and it was actually made for a completely
different reason having nothing to do with what we're here
about, which is the client was considering doing foreclosures
for homeowners associations, and they thought they would need a

loan collector's license for that.
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THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: For that.
MR. CERAN: And then they determined that there would
be a confiict of interest with their lender clients. So they
just threw their hands up and said we're not going to do that.
In the meantime, they got their license, and they kept it. So
there's no - our representation is we produced everything that
there is in response to this request. If we find anything
else, we'l produce it.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: So the first discussion
your client had with respect to obtaining a debt collector's
license was when?
MR. CERAN: Well, the discussions may have happened
as early as 2009, 2010, but as far as any writings, in a small
company you don't necessarily create a writing every time you
talk to someone about an idea, and that, apparently what the
situation was here. So the only record we had are the records
of our applications and of the licenses -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And you've turmned all
those over?
MR. CERAN: --and we produced those. Pardon?
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: You've tumed those
over?
MR. CERAN: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. BOYLAN: According to the swom testimony there

were four or five meetings of the highest levels, the senior
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management where they were discussing whether the law required
them to have a license. There are conflicts in the testimony
about how many times and when. Ms. Shubermn Kohl said that they
were doing it as early as 2009. We know otherwise that they
were doing it around the time that they decided to apply for
the license in 2012. We know her comments about this being an
industry issue and an industry argument. She said there were
regular written agendas for these top-level meetings. We've
never seen a single one.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Have you asked for the
minutes of any meeting?
MR. BOYLAN: Yes, | asked Mr. Ceran that when -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Did you ask itina
written discovery request?
MR. BOYLAN: It's within the scope of this one, No.
3, but I didn't know they existed until | took the depositions.
So when it was disclosed to me, as you know, Your Honor, you're
taking a deposition and a witness tells you something that you
had no idea of before, and so | said, Mr. Ceran, these are
clearly responsive to our discovery. We need these.
So the other thing is -
MR. CERAN: Your Honor, if | can respond to that
before we move on -
MR. BOYLAN: Id like to finish my thought on that --
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | can only listen to one

JD Reporting, Inc.
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of you atatime. Let plaintiffs' counsel finish.

| promise, Defense Counsel, I'l give you time to
respond.

MR. BOYLAN: Yes. And again, as you said, Your
Honor, we may have to piece this together laboriously later,
but one of the owners of the company Terry Johnson -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Apparently we have
another issue.

THE COURT RECORDER: Itjust says it's not -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: It's not recording?

THE COURT RECORDER: It keeps pausing. It says
database connection lost.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Why don'twe just take a
very brief break. We're going to contact our IT department,
and | promise | wont even tell any funny jokes. Well take a
very quick break. We're going to contact our IT department and
get someone up here because | know that this transcript will be
important to you both.

(Proceedings recessed 2:57 p.m. to 3:03 p.m.)

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay. We're going to do
our best to get through this hearing in the next few minutes.

MR. CERAN: Uh-oh.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | do have IT perhaps
coming up. So | will just forewamn counsel. Inany event,

let's just try to get through this as quickly as we can. |
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know it's been a very long day.

So I'm not quite sure where we left off.

MR. CERAN: We were talking about agendas, Your
Honor, and there were no - there are no documents that were
identified in any deposition for sure in which the topic of
becoming licensed was on an agenda. There's an element of
wishfulness and fantasy in the statements by Mr. Boylan in that
regard.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Sometimes the simplest
facts are the most effective. So | think what | would say with
respect to what you're saying -- and | don't disagree with
you — | just think what you need to do is just make sure that
you have turned over all the information that you have
documented, and they may have had informal discussions. Last
time | checked, that was not a crime. So maybe they did have
those informal discussions. It's okay if they did, and you can
find out more about that when you finish the depositions.

But in the interim, I'm just going to have defense
counsel just double check and make sure that any of the
documentation that involves a discussion of whether or not MTC
required a license has been disclosed.

MR. BOYLAN: And what | have found over the years,
Your Honor, is - and | hate to have to press to getinto it in
depositions because it's laborious, but its an issue in this

case based on some testimony - it's really critical that the
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defendant as directed by the defense lawyers require
communication to the right staff people in terms of looking for
documents, and it's very easy to not produce documents simply
by not asking, whether by intent or inadvertently not asking
the right people within the organization to look for documents.
Let me give you what the swom testimony is.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, | do not want to
discuss that right now. | am going to give defense counsel the
opportunity. | think he's experienced. | think he knows how
to ask the right questions. If he doesntand there's a
problem that arises later on, Il deal with it, but | really
don't need a treatise on what can go wrong in discovery. |
could probably write one -
MR. BOYLAN: | agree. The specific -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: But | just want you to
understand | know what you're asking. You're entitled to it.
I've ordered it. Defense counsel's going to go back and double
check. You know, witnesses are not lawyers. Theyre human
beings. They remember certain things. They don't remember
others. They think it's one date, and it tums out to be a
different date. That doesn't mean they've committed a felony.
MR. BOYLAN: Absolutely.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: So let's be respectful
of the fact that these are people you are deposing who are

going to give you the best recollection they can -

JD Reporting, Inc.
127




© 00 N o o b~ W N B

N N N N DD DN P P P PP,k Rk
oa A W N b O © 0 N O O o W N +— O

MR. BOYLAN: And -

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: - but let's see what
documents, if there are any additional ones, that the defense
counsel can provide.

Allright. No. 8 is the next one that | have, and |
think we've probably already discussed this with the contract
Issue, but any internal documents, any external documents,
anything that talks about what your job responsibilities are -
your meaning MTC's responsibiliies — needs to be provided,
and that would include internal memorandum. These are the
things we're going to do in Nevada.

MR. BOYLAN: Right. And just for the Court's record,
| wanted to inform you that Ms. Colburme Shore -- Shubermn Kohl,
when she was deposed, she's the key person. She's the head of
the department, and she was described also as the overall
operations manager by the owner.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Uh-huh.

MR. BOYLAN: She testified unequivocally that she
never searched for any of these records, nor was she ever even
asked to search for any of these records.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, she will be now if
she was not asked before. Defense counsel is going to take my
direction and see if there's any additional information that
needs to be supplemented by February 1st.

MR. BOYLAN: | think that's all we have, Your Honor.
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THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Oh, No. 22 -
MR. BOYLAN: | think we -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: --we've really covered
it with the contract issue.
MR. BOYLAN: There's other issues, but I've gone
round and round with Mr. Ceran, and he's just adamant that
these other documents don' exist although we have some --
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Why don't you take the
depositions of the individuals that you want to take that you
haven't had the opportunity yet to take. See what information
you can glean, and welll talk about it.
MR. BOYLAN: Okay. Thank you.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: When we need to.
So Mr. Boylan is going to prepare the report and
recommendations from today’s hearing.
Plaintiffs' motion to compel is granted in part and
denied in part. The motion to compel part is granted within
the parameters that we've discussed, and denied in certain
aspects. I'm not going to reiterate everything right now, and
the motion for sanctions is denied without prejudice, without
prejudice, and the reason for that is | feel very strongly
about the 2.34 meet and confer. | think it did help you all
this morning to take that time, but everybody's on notice now.
| want a meet and confer before you file a discovery motion,

and that means before you file a motion for protective order,
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too. All ight.

MR. BOYLAN: Normally, Your Honor, | try to take good
notes and wouldn't need the transcript, but for this report,
this has been lengthy. I'm probably going to need the
transcript to prepare the report.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Absolutely. It may take
alittle ime. 1 will give you some additional time to prepare
it

MR. BOYLAN: Okay. Thank you.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: The reportand
recommendations, but we do also have - you have the ability to
obtain a disc from today's hearing.

MR. BOYLAN: Oh.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And that would be very
quick.

MR. CHRISTOPHER: Whatever's fastest.

MR. CERAN: What | was going to say, Your Honor, that
the longer it takes to get that information, | mean, we're
supposed to do things by February 1st, and if it was going to
take a long time to get it then —-

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | would suggest everyone
order a disc from today's hearing -

MR. CERAN: Oh, yeah.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: - if there's a concem
that you don't - | mean, | took pretty good notes, but | know
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you're - you know, I'm sure some of your notes are good as

well, but if you want to listen to the transcript, | would

highly recommend you order one. | will get - if you want to

make the - I'm sorry - listen to the disc. If you want to

order a transcript, you can order one. |just don't know when

it will necessarily be prepared for you, but you can order a

disc right now and listen to the hearing. | hope | said that

correctly.

Okay. Anything -
MR. CERAN: My mouth's not really - at this late -
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | know. I'm not sure

my — I'm not sure my -- 'm not sure mine's working anymore

either.

Allright. Are there any other questions or concems

that we have today?

MR. BECKOM: Just one quick clarification because I'm

easily confused.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT RECORDER: Can you come forward, please.
MR. BECKOM: Oh, sorry.

THE COURT RECORDER: Thank you.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And just state your

appearance again because we have so many individuals.

MR. BECKOM: Thomas Beckom on behalf of Quality Loan

Service Corporation.
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THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Mr. Beckom.
MR. BECKOM: Plaintiffs are going to circulate a -
the proposed report and recommendation among all the parties
prior to submission?
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Absolutely.
MR. BECKOM: Al right.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | expect everyone to
approve, all the defense counsels to approve as to form and
content.
So anything further?
THE CLERK: Do you want a status check?
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Status check on the
report and recommendations from today's hearing will be the
February 10th date at 9:30, which is when you're set to
appear before me. If for some reason we end up moving that
date, then Il move the status check on the report and
recommendations as well, but 'm hopeful that we can take care
of everything on the 10th of February, but again I'm willing to
move it if another date works better.
And if you have to appear before Judge Gephart around
that -- Kephart around that same time, then | would suggest we
try to set this motion then or the status check for that time.
MR. BOYLAN: Great. Thank you very much, Your Honor.
THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Allright. Thank you
all.
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ATTORNEYS: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Have safe travels —-

UNIDENTIFIED ATTORNEY: Thank you very much, Your
Honor. Thanks for your time.

THE DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: - back home. Safe
travels.

(Proceedings concluded 3:13 p.m.)
-000-

ATTEST: | do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly
transcribed the audioideo proceedings in the above-entitied

case.

Janie L. Olsen
Transcriber
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